E’m
From: I

Sent:
To:
Cc
Subject: - FW: Force majeure Snow

.\-. .
- s N ‘
bk
e,

Mindful that you had not been copied into-e—mail

“Regards,
m, .

Rail Directorate

Transport Scotland
Buchanan House

58 Port Dundas Road
Glasgow

G4 OHF

For agency and travel information visif our website

Transport Scotland, the national transport agency
Comhdhail Alba, buidheann naiseanta na comhdhail

From:
Sent: 05 March 2018 11:34
To:
Cc:

Subject: RE: Force majeure Snow

Thanks-

A_is pulling together details of the daily service alterations/implications and proposed treatment for me
this week. I'd propose that we review that once available and agree overall treatment before any adjustments are
implemented by the performance teams, .

Regards




;
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Atrium Court, 50 Waterloo St, Glasgow, G2 6HQ. St

Abellio ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scotland Nufnber S5C450732. Registered office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building
36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1LU

This message is intended solely for the addressee and may contain confidential information. if you have received this meésage in error, p

it back to us, and immediately and permanently detete it. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this message or in any
attachment,

o

Subject: Re: Force majeure Snow

Thanks [}

-primarily but keep _copied in please.

-~

Kind regards

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the EE network,

From:
Sent: Friday, 2 March 2018 4:08 PM




To:
Cc:
Subject: FW: Force majeure Snow

Dear all,

We would be keen to work through the contractual Schedule 7.1 PPM implications of this as soon as things calm
down sufficiently to free up the necessary resource. Who is the best point of contract within TS?

Have safe journeys hcme to those travelling; and good weekends.

Classified as INTERNAL

Atrium Court, 50 Waterloo St, Glasgow, G2 6HQ.

B Scotfail

FOTLANDY BT

Abellio ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scotland Number SC450732. Registered office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building
36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1LU

This message is intended solely for the addressee and may contain confidential information. If you have received this message in error, p
it back to us, and immediately and permanently delete it. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this message or in any
attachment.

From:

Sent: 01 March 2018 11:45
To:

Subject: Force majeure Snow

Ali Notice is Hereby given of the Following Force Majeure Incident




28/02/18 and ongoing Severe Weather [ncident

Incident log 17202832,

28/02/2018 13:30  Due to red warning issued by the met office :-
+ The Met Office have issued a red warning of snow valid from 15:00 on Wednesday 28th February until 10:00 on Thursda
+ The Met Office have issued an amber weather warning for snow valid from 10:15 on Wednesday 28th February until 18:C
» The Met Office have issued a yellow weather warning for snow valid from 09:55 until 23:55 on Wednesday 28th February
« The Met Office have issued a yellow weather warning for snow valid from 00:05 until 23:55 on Thursday st March
s The Mat Office have issued a yellow weather warning for enow valid from 00:05 on Friday 2nd March until 23:55 on Satu

Key Route Strategy Implemented as follows until 1800hrs.-
Glasgow/ Ayr

Glasgow / Carlisle WCML

Glasgow Queen St/ Edinburgh via E&G

Edinburgh/ Dundee via Kirkcaldy

Edinburgh - ECML

Full shut down of service throughout the RED affected area 1800hrs to 1000hrs.

Trust Incidents to date.

EVERE WEATHER EDB . .

- 28/02/18 841437

28/02/48 841442 X9 SEVERE WEATHER GLC

28/02/18 841434 COXQ e SEVERE WEATHER PTH e i
28/02/18 841430 X9 "USEVERE WEATHERMTH

L 28/02/18° .. 8428420 SV ZNI3 HORNFLRINGL, =i
28/02/18 841611 Xg 5L03 7 OVERTIMEMTH '

. 01/03/18 o BASBO2 X9, i SEVERE WEATHER GLC 280027700
28/02/18 841616 X9 ' " 1702 4 LOST PTH BLFD '

. 28/02/18 v 84485t X9 L 2G98 3 LOST WEMYSBY PYG o s s

' 28/02/18 841461 ' X9 ' IT10 CHANGE OF ORIGIN

Note that this an ongoing incident

Regards

151 St.Vincent Street, Glasgow, G2 5NJ.

ScotBail

FLOTLANDS RAIMAY

MND
Scotlan

Abellio ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scotland Number SC450732. Registered office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building
36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1LU




’Scoté%?%%

ScortAND’s RANWAY

By Email

Acting ScotRail Franchise Contract Manager
Transport Scotland

!all !e! |ormanc:e Manager

Transport Scotland

oear [

Force Majeure Evenl — exfreme weather (snow) hetween Wednesday 28" February and Friday 02" March 2018

I refer to: (i) ASR’s force majeure notice issued by email on 28% February; (ii} my subsequent email of 5 March; and
(iiiy email of 14" March. Further to that correspondence | am writing to provide details of the daily service
alterations/imptications and associated ASR activities and mitigations; and our proposed contractual treatment.

By way of background information, please find attached a briefing note which has been pulled together by _
which 1 hope you will find to be of assistance. Also attached is a spreadsheet which detaits all PPM failures in respect
of each of the above dates (which reflects the position after adjustment of performance systems for all trains which have
been deemed “non-applicable” in accordance with industry rules under the established emergency timetables).

Date: 19 March 2018

| would draw your attention to the following points:
Daily service allerations/implications

+  OnWednesday 28" February, ASR incurred a total of 1,839 PPM failures. Most of these failures (circa 70%)
relate to cancellations of services pursuant to the controlfed closure of the network agreed with SG/TS in
response 1o the red weather warning issued by the Met Office and “do not travel" advice issued by Scottish
Government.  The balance are attributable to pericds of the day during which ASR continued to aperate
services to allow people to travel safely under severely challenging and deteriorating weather conditions which
were significantly worse than had been forecast at the time the emergency timetable for 28" February was
agreed on Tuesday 27" February.

¢+ ASRincutred 61 recorded PPM failures on Thursday 1% March and 153 recorded PPM failures on Friday 2
March. On these dates ScotRail continued to operafe certain services under Emergency timetables on an
agreed basis with SG/TS that prioritised the safe movement of customers, including agreement to add
additional stops to a number of services, which resuited in extended journey times and the PPM failures incluired
on these days.

ASR response/mitigations

As noted above, ASR operated throughout the above period in accordance with an agreed strategy established through
close communication with Scottish Government and Transport Scotland, which resulted in closure of the network in a
controlled and planned fashion when the weather advice indicated that this was necessary and which sought to pricritise
maoving people safely where it was possible to do so.

Abellio ScotRaii Limited
Registered in Scotland Number SC450732 s
5th Floor, Culzean Building 36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1LU d bel I 1O

Classified as CONFIDENTIAL




! Scot il

SCOTLAND'S RAILWAY

The ScotRail Alliance's response to the extreme weather and, in particular, the efforts made by our staff under
challenging conditions to restore the railway to safe passenger oparations were praised by the Transport Minister in his
letter tohof 11% March.

Proposed contractual treatment of above

ASR has notified a Force Majeure Event In respect of the above and would dlarify that we believe paragraphs {(a), {(g)
and (f) of the definition of Force Majeure Event are all applicable to aspects/periods of the extreme weather event.

ASR claims refisf/derogation for all non-compliances with the Franchise Agreement arising from the above Force
Majeure Event, including without jimitation:-

« in respect of alf resultant failures to compiy with the SLC and the adoption of Emergency Timetables on the
applicable dates;

« in respect of any SQUIRE failures arising and

e agreement that all PPM failures incurred on the above dates are excluded for the purposes of calcuiating results
against the performance Benchmarks under Schedule 7.1 of the Franchise Agreement (Train Operating
Performance}.

Next steps/further information

| trust the above is of assistance in dlarifying the position and the scope of our Force Majeure Event notification. Myself
and ould be pleased to arrange a meeting to discuss this matter with you further, if required.

Yours sincerely

Head of Legal
Abellio ScotRail Limited

Abellio ScotRail Limited
Registered in Scotland Number SC450732 €D
5th Floor, Culzean Bullding 36 Renfigld Street Glasgow G2 1LU G be | l |0

Classified as CONFIDENTIAL
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Subject: RE: Notification of force majeure events
Attachments: Email letter re Beast from the East.pdf; Force Majeure background.docx

Subject: RE: Notification of force majeure events

Please see attached letter and supporting information.

As always happy to discuss.

Regards

Classified as INTERNAL

Atrium Court, 50 Waterloo St, Glasgow, G2 6HQ.

‘Scotsf%&é’é

ScOTLANG'S RAIWAY

Abellio ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scotland Number SC450732. Registered office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building
36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1LU

This message Is intended solely for the addressee and may contain confidential information. If you have received this message in error, p
it back to us, and immediately and permanently delete it. Do not use, copy or disclose the informaticn contained in this message or in any
attachment.




From
Sent: 14 March 2018 10:28

To:
Cc:

Subject: Notification of force majeure events

Dear I

Further to your email of 28" February, with respect to the snow events of that week.

on 5+ March, I (ScotRail) advised | =t they were pulling together the

details of the daily service alterations/implications, and the proposed treatments, as follows:

is pulling together details of the daily service alterations/implications and proposed
treatment for me this week. I'd propose that we review that once available and agree overall
freatment before any adjustments are implemented by the performance teams.

Now, we have not as yet received these details; and, given the franchise requirement that we
(Transport Scotland) are sighted within a couple of days as to how force majeure events are to be
mitigated, could you please confirm ASAP when ScotRail will be in a position to share this level of
detail with Transport Scotland.

Thanking you ...




Scotiiail

SCOTLAND'S RAILWAY

By Email

Acting ScotRail Franchise Contract Manager
Transport Scetland

!au !e!ormance Manager

Transport Scotland

Force Majeure Event —~ exfreme weather fsnow) between Wadnesday 28" February and Friday 02" Mairch 2018

Date; 19 March 2018

| re . {j) ASR's force majeure notice issued by email on 28 February; (i} my subsequent email of 5% March; and
(iiiy email of 14" March. Further to that correspondence | am writing to provide details of the daily service
alterations/implications and associated ASR activities and mitigations; and our proposed contractual treatment.

By way of background information, please find attached a briefing note which has been pulled together by

which | hope you will find to be of assistance. Also attached is a spreadsheet which details all PPM failures in respect
of each of the above dates (which reflects the position after adjustment of performance systems for all trains which have
been deemed "non-applicable” in accordance with industry rules under the established emergency timetables).

t would draw your attention to the following points:
Daily service alferationsAimplications

»  OnWednesday 28" February, ASR incurred a total of 1,839 PPM failures. Most of these failures (circa 70%)
relate to cancellations of services pursuant to the controlled closure of the network agreed with SG/TS in
response to the red weather warning issued by the Met Office and "do not travel” advice issued by Scottish
Government. The balance are atfributable to periods of the day during which ASR continued to operate
services to allow people to travel safely under severely challenging and deteriorating weather conditions which
were significantly worse than had been forecast at the time the emergency timetable for 28" February was
agreed on Tuesday 27" February.

¢ ASRincurred 81 recorded PPM faitures on Thursday 1% March and 153 recorded PPM failures on Friday 20
March. On these dates ScotRail continued to operate certain services under Emergency timetables on an
agreed basis with SG/TS that prioritised the safe movement of customers, including agreement to add
additional stops to a number of services, which resulted in extended journey times and the PPM failures incurred
on these days,

ASR response/mitigations

As noted above, ASR operated throughout the above period in accordance with an agreed strategy established through
close cormnmunication with Scottish Government and Transport Scotland, which resulted in closure of the network in a
controlled and planned fashion when the weather advice indicated that this was necessary and which sought to prioritise
moving people safely where it was possible to do so.

Abellio ScotRail Limited
Registered in Scolland Number SC450732 D
5th Fleor, Culzean Building 36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1LU Q bel I Io

Classified as CONFIDENTIAL
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ScOTLAND'S RAILWAY

The ScotRail Alliance's response to the extreme weather and, in particular, the efforts made by our staff under

challenging conditions to restore the railway to safe passenger operations were praised by the Transport Minister in his
letter thf 1% March,

Froposed contractual treatment of above

ASR has notified a Force Majeure Event in respect of the above and would clarify that we believe paragraphs (a), (e}
and (f) of the definition of Force Majeure Event are all applicable to aspects/periods of the extreme weather event.

ASR claims relief/derogation for all non-compliances with the Franchise Agreement arising from the above Force
Majeure Event, including without limitation:-

« in respect of all resultant failures to comply with the SLC and the adoption of Emergency Timetables on the
applicable dates;

¢ in respect of any SQUIRE failures arising and

« agreement that alt PPM failures incurred on the above dates are excluded for the purposes of calculating results
against the performance Benchmarks under Schedule 7.1 of the Franchise Agreement (Train Operating
Performance).

Next steps/further information

| trust the above is of assistance in clarifying the position and the scope of our Force Majeure Event notification. Myself
and Mark liiderton would be pleased to arrange a meeting to discuss this matter with you further, if required.

Yours sincerely

Abellic ScotRail Limited
Registered in Scofland Number SC450732 . >
5th Floor, Culzean Building 36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1LU Q bel I 10

Classified as CONFIDENTIAL
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Sent: 20 March 2018 14:30

To:

Subject: RE: Notification of force majeure events

Thanks |||l

I acknowledge receipt of this as it refers to events of 28 February 2018 — 2 March 2018.

I will provide a formal response as soon as practicable

Regards

Transport Scotland
Buchanan House
58 Port Dundas Road
Glasgow

G4 OHF

For agency and travel information visit our website

Transport Scotland, the national transport agency
Comhdhail Alba, buidheann naiseanta na comhdhail

rrore: [
Sent: 19 March 2018 10:03




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
it back to us, and immediately and permanently delete it. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this message orin any
altachment.

Sent: 14 March 2018 10:28

o S
. |

pear I




Further to your email of 28+ February, with respect to the snhow events of that week.

On 5w March,F (ScotRail) advised *that they were puliling together the
details of the daily service alterations/implications, and the proposed treatments, as follows:
_is pulling together details of the daily service alterations/implications and proposed

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
detail with Transport Scotiand.

Thanking you ...

EE AL S EEEEEE RS EEEE S LRSI ERE RS E LR SRR SRS SR EE L LS

This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it} is intended solely for the attention of the
addressee(s}, Unauthorised use, disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this e-mail is not
permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please destroy the email, remove any copies from your system and
inform the sender immediately by return.

Communications with the Scottish Government may be manitored or recorded in order to secure the effective
operation of the system and for other lawful purposes. The views or opinions contained within this e-mail may not
necessarily reflect those of the Scottish Government.

Tha am post-d seo (agus faidhle neo ceanglan comhla ris) dhan neach neo luchd-ainmichte a-mhain. Chan eil e
ceadaichte a chleachdadh ann an doigh sam bith, a’ toirt a-steach coraichean, foillseachadh neo sgaoileadh, gun
chead. Ma s e is gun d'fhuair sibh seo gun fhiosd’, bu choir cur as dhan phost-d agus lethbhreac sam bith air an t-
siostam agaibh agus fios a leigeil chun neach a sgaoil am post-d gun dail.

Dh'fhaodadh gum bi teachdaireachd sam bith bho Riaghalias na h-Alba air a chlaradh neo air a sgrudadh airson
dearbhadh gu bheil an siostam ag obair gu h-&ifeachdach neo airson adhbhar laghail eile. Dh'fhaodadh nach eil

beachdan anns a’ phost-d seo co-ionann ri beachdan Riaghaltas na h-Alba.
3 e o sk ok ok s o ok ok e sl e ok 3ok ok o ok sk ol ok e ok o sk ok sk R ok K oo o s ok oK o sk S o ok ol ol ok o e e ok di o ol ok ook ol ok ok ook ol kR koK R ek ok
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Abellio Scotrail Ltd, Registered in Scotland, number: SC450732,
Registered Office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building, 36 Renfield Street, Glasgow, G2 1LU

VAT number: 198 2787 41




s

We have received notification from ScotRail that they consider the events of 28 February — 2 March 2018 a
Force Majeure Event (Schedule 10.4 of ASR Franchise) and the attached notification details the different
Schedules that they are seeking relief from.

I am sharing this with you — primarily for information — however if you have any comments/observations
they would of course be gratefully received

Kind regards,

Transport Scotland
Buchanan House
58 Port Dundas Road
Glasgow

G4 OHF

For agency and trave! information visit our website

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

B Scotiail |

SEOTERRD'S R weay {

Abellic ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scotland Number SC450732. Registered office: bth Floor, Culzean Building
36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1L.U

This message is intended solely for the addressee and may contain confidential information. If you have received this message in error, p
it back to us, and immediately and permanently delete it. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this message or in any
aftachment.

From : |
Sent: 14 March 2018 10:28

Subject: Notification of force majeure events

Dear I

Further to your email of 28" February, with respect to the snow events of that week.

On 5 March,_(ScotRail) advised _that they were pulling together the

details of the daily service alterations/implications, and the proposed treatments, as follows:

is pulling together details of the daily service alterations/implications and proposed
treatment for me this week. I'd propose that we review that once available and agree overall
treatment before any adjustments are implemented by the performance teams.

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
addressee(s). Unauthorised use, disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this e-mail is not
permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please destroy the emall, remove any copies from your system and
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

Tha am post-d seo (agus faidhle neo ceanglan cdmbhla ris) dhan neach neo luchd-ainmichte a-mhain. Chan eil e
ceadaichte a chleachdadh ann an ddigh sam bith, a’ toirt a-steach coraichean, foiliseachadh neo sgacileadh, gun
chead. Ma ‘s e is gun d’fhuair sibh seo gun fhiosd’, bu cheir cur as dhan phost-d agus lethbhreac sam bith air an t-
siostam agaibh agus fios a leigeil chun neach a sgacil am post-d gun dail.

Dh'thacdadh gum bi teachdaireachd sam bith bho Riaghaltas na h-Alba air a chlaradh neo air a sgrudadh airson
dearbhadh gu bheil an siostam ag obair gu h-gifeachdach neo airson adhbhar laghail eile, Dh'fhaodadh nach eil

beachdan anns a’ phost-d seo co-ionann ri beachdan Riaghaltas na h-Alba.
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Abellio Scotrail I.td, Registered in Scotland, number; SC450732.
Registered Office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building, 36 Renfield Street, Glasgow, G2 1L.U

VAT number: 198 2787 41
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From:
Sent: 16 April 2018 16:11
To:
Ce:
|
Subject: RE: Force majeure meeting: actions arising
Attachments; Force Majeure Background note updated 16 April.docx

oeorfN

Good afterncon.

Please find attached an updated version of our background note, with an appendix detailing the daily service
alterations as a result of the emergency timetables.

| hope this provides the necessary information to allow you to consider our request for force majeure. Should you
require further information please let myself and Mark know and we will be happy to provide.

Regards

Classified as INTERNAL

Atrium Court, 50 Waterloo St, Glasgow, G2 6HQ.

Scotiail

SCOTIANDS AATLWAY

Abellio ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scotland Number SC450732. Registered office: 5th Fleor, Culzean Building
36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1LU

This message is intended solely for the addressee and may contain confidential information. If you have received this message in error, p
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it back to us, and immediately and permanently delste it. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this message or in any
attachment.

rrom:

Sent: 12 April 2018 13:02

Subject: Force majeure meeting: actions arising

o, I

At our meeting on 28» March, it was agreed that within two weeks from that date, ScotRail would
supply details of what trains did run during the weather events, with respect to the emergency
timetable. This was in order to allow Transport Scotland to decide how to handle the request for a
force majeure, w.r.t the weather at the end of February.

We would like to know when we can expect this information from you.

Best,
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This e-mail {and any files or other attachments transmitted with it} is intended solely for the attention of the
addressee(s). Unauthorised use, disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this e-mail is not
permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please destroy the email, remove any copies from your system and
inform the sender immediately by return.

Communications with the Scottish Government may be monitored or recorded in order to secure the effective
operation of the system and for other lawfui purposes. The views or opinions contained within this e-mail may not
necessarily reflect those of the Scottish Government.

Tha am post-d seo {agus faidhle neo ceanglan comhla ris} dhan neach neo [uchd-ainmichte a-mhain. Chan eil e
ceadaichte a chleachdadh ann an ddigh sam bith, a’ toirt a-steach coraichean, foillseachadh neo sgaoileadh, gun
chead, Ma’s e is gun d’fhuair sibh seo gun fhiosd’, bu choir cur as dhan phost-d agus lethbhreac sam bith air an t-
siostam agaibh agus fios a leigeil chun neach a sgacil am post-d gun dail.

Dh'thaocdadh gum bi teachdaireachd sam bith bho Riaghaltas na h-Alba air a chlaradh neo air a sgriidadh airson
dearbhadh gu bheil an siostam ag obair gu h-¢ifeachdach neo airson adhbhar laghail eile. Dh'fhaodadh nach eil

beachdan anns a’ phost-d sec co-icnann ri beachdan Riaghaltas na h-Alba.
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Abellio Scotrail Ltd, Registered in Scotland, number: SC450732.
Registered Office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building, 36 Renfield Street, Glasgow, G2 1L.U

VAT number; 198 2787 41



Background Note - Force Majeure Event - Wednesday 28 February 2018 — Friday 02™
March 2018

Wednesday 28" February 2018

On Tuesday 27" February 2018, an emergency timetable was agreed to apply from start of
service Wednesday 28™ February 2018 (Please refer to the Appendix for further details of
daily service alterations), in reaction to an amber Met Office ‘be prepared’ weather warning
which was to apply from 0600hrs on Wednesday 28 February 2018.

The Met Office have issued an Amber Warning of Snow
Valid from 06:00 on Wed, 28th Feb 2018 until 18:00 on Thu, 01st Mar 2618

Frequent and heavy snow showers are expected on Wednesday and Thursday leading to
some significant accumulations developing.

During the evening of Tuesday 27" February 2018, heavy snow showers affected large parts
of Scotland, leading to significant overnight accumulations of snow which began to drift
prior to the Met Office amber warning taking effect at 06.00hrs on the morning of
Wednesday 28" February 2018,

When the emergency timetable was agreed on Tuesday 27t February 2018 that would
apply on Wednesday 28" February 2018, it was agreed taking into account the amber
warning for snowfall only commenced at 06.00hrs on Wednesday 28" February 2018. It
was evident that significant accumulations of snow had falien prior to the start time of the
amber warning on Wednesday 28" February 2018, which had a significant impact on railway
operations,

1|Page




At 11.12hrs on Wednesday 28" February 2018, the Met Office issued a red ‘take action’
warnhing for snow, which was applicable until 10.00hrs on Thursday 01 March 2018. After
this warning was issued, Scottish Government advice for all transport modes was not to
travel and a controlled closure of the network was arranged after discussions with Transport
Scotland. The worsening of the forecast from that issued on Tuesday 27" February 2018, as
well as the updated travel advice, upgraded Met Office snow warning and associated
closure of the network were not anticipated when the emergency timetable was agreed and
as such the performance impact was significant with a total of 1,839 PPM failures recorded
for Wednesday 28" February 2018.

The Met Office have issued a Red Warning of Snow
Valid from 15:00 on Wed, 28th Feb 2018 until 10:00 on Thu, 01st Mar 2018

Heavy show showers and drifting of Iying snow in the strong easterly winds will become
more widespread across the area later on Wednesday afternoon, through the evening and
overnight into Thursday.

Roads will become blocked by deep snow, with many stranded vehicles and passengers.
Long delays and cancellations on bus, rail and air travel are expected. Some communities
could become cut off for several days. Long interruptions to power supplies and other
services.

Due to the arrival of heavy falls of snow combined with drifting drifting prior to the Met
Office amber weather warning commencing at 0600hrs on Wednesday 28" February 2018,
as well as the issuance of the Met Office red ‘take action’ warning and associated Scottish
government advice not to travel issued on Wednesday 28" February 2018, PPM relief under
force majeure is requested to apply from start of service and throughout Wednesday 28
February 2018. This was a time when the focus was solely to safely move customers
irrespective of the impact this had on ScotRail’s public performance measure, an approach
that was agreed through discussions between ASR Gold Command and the Scottish
Government’s Resilience Room, who were in close communication throughout the event.
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Thursday 015 March 2018

On Wednesday 28t February 2018, an emergency timetable was agreed that was to apply
on Thursday 01% March 2018. To assist in the movement of customers on Thursday 015t
March 2018 and following discussions with Transport Scotland, it was agreed that services
that were running would call at additional stops to uplift additional customers, which
resulted in extended journey times and 61 PPM failures for the day.

As agreed with Transport Scotland, the safe movement of customers was the priority
throughout Thursday 015 March 2018, with a Met Office red warning in place until 10.00hrs
and an amber warning in place throughout the day and beyond until 10.00hrs on Friday 02™
March 2018,

PPM relief under force majeure is requested to apply from start of service and throughout
Thursday 01t March 2018, given the sole priority to safely move customers irrespective of
the impact this had on ScotRail’s public performance measure, after discussions with
Transpart Scotland.

The Met Office have issued an Amber Warning of Snow
Valid from 10:30 on Thu, 01st Mar 2018 until 10:00 on Fri, 02nd Mar 2018

Frequent and often heavy snow showers are expected to continue through Thursday and
overnight into Friday morning with further significant accumulations likely.

Long delays and cancellations on bus, rail and air travel could occur. Roads may become
blocked by deep snow, with many stranded vehicles and passengers. Some rural
communities might be cut off for several days. Long interruptions to power supplies and
other services such as telephone and mobile phone networks, could occur,

3|Page




Friday 02™ March 2018x1

On Thursday 015 March 2018, an emergency timetable was agreed that was to apply on
Friday 02" March 2018. It was agreed with Transport Scotland that the priority for the day
would again be to safely move customers, especially given many had been cut off due to
road closures and had been unable to travel for a lengthy period. Again additional stops
were added to services that were running, resulting in extended journey times that resulted
in 153 recorded PPM failures for the day.

Valid from 11:30 on Fri, 02nd Mar 2018 until 23:55 on Sat, 03rd Mar 2018

Snow showers are expected to continue over parts of northern Britain, bringing further
accumulations of snow and a risk of icy stretches.

Further delays to travel and public transport could occur, whilst some rural communities
could become or remain cut off. Further impacts to power supplies/mobile phone coverage
are also possible.

PPM relief under force majeure is requested to apply from start of service and throughout
Friday 02™ March 2018, given the ongoing priority to safely move customers irrespective of
the impact this had on ScotRail’s public performance measure, after discussions with
Transport Scotland.
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Appendix — Daily service alterations under emergency timetable arrangements

Emergency timetable agreed Tuesday 27th February 2018 for Wednesday 28th February
2018

Services at Edinburgh:
XX08 EDB/GLT & return XX20 GLT/EDB Suspended
XX19 EDB/COW & return XX23 COW/EDB Suspended

XX03 EDB/DBL & return XX28 DBL/EDB Suspended

2798 1520 Glenrothes to Tweedbank starts Edinburgh at 1624
2752 1619 Glenrothes to Tweedbank starts Edinburgh at 1722

Services from/to GLQ
XX27/57 Queen St to / from Anniesland services suspended.

After 2030 services XX18/48 Queen St to Croy & return XX17/47 Croy to Queen St suspended
{Local bus ticket acceptance for Lenzie & Bishopbriggs}.

5N82 0636 GLQ/LNZ — 2N82 0734 LNZ/GLQ Cancelled
1N80 0713 Kirkcaldy to Queen St cancelled

1185 1611 GLQ / Arbroath terminates DEE

2N73 1633 Queen St to LNZ runs as booked

1121 1711 GLQ to Carnoustie terminates DEE

IN79 1733 GLQ to Markinch Cancelled

Services at Aberdeen:

1A56 1529 Inverness to Stonehaven terminates at Aberdeen
2A62 1552 Aberdeen to Inverurie cancelled

2T00 1636 Aberdeen to Stonehaven cancelled.

2A55 1647 inverurie to Stonehaven cancelled.

Services To/From Perth:
1H17 1741 Edinburgh to Inverness terminates at Perth and attaches to 1H53 1811 Queen St
to Inverness

Services at Dundee:

2L09 0603 Carnoustie to Dundee cancelled

1185 1611 GLQ / Arbroath terminates DEE & return 1152 1820 Arbroath to Edinburgh starts
Dundee

1121 1711 GLQ to Carnoustie terminates DEE

North Electric / Argyle Line:
No alterations.

Glasgow Central:
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Glasgow Central to Barrhead services suspended {Local bus ticket acceptance for Nitshill /
Priesthill / Pollokshaws West)

Emergency timetable agreed Wednesday 28 Feb 2018 for Thursday 1% March 2018

It was agreed that the following routes would operate®

» Aberdeen/Inverness route

e Inverness/Wick route

+ Inverness/Kyle route

e Perth/Inverness route

» Crianlarich/Oban/Fort William/Mallaig route
« Dundee/Aberdeen route

e Ayr/Girvan/Stranraer

« Glasgow Central /Ayr (to run after red warning expired)

+ Glasgow Central/Kilmarnock (to run after red warning expired)

« Edinburgh/Dundee (to run after red warning expired)

+ Edinburgh/Glasgow Queen Street HL via Falkirk High (to run after red warning
expired)

*albeit with some alterations due to crew and set displacement as a result of extreme weather in the
amber and red Met Office weather warning areas.

There was u reduction in frequency to services operating under emergency timetable arrangements,
however this was agreed the night before on each occasion.

Emergency timetable agreed Thursday 1% March 2018 for Friday 2" March 2018

It was agreed that the following routes would operate*:-

« Aberdeen/Inverness route

« Inverness/Wick route

+ Inverness/Kyle route

e Perth/Inverness route

« Crianlarich/Oban/Fort William/Mallaig route
e Dundee/Aberdeen route

e Ayr/Girvan/Stranraer

¢ Glasgow Central/Ayr (to run after red warning expired)

+ Glasgow Central/Kilmarnock (to run after red warning expired}

» Edinburgh/Dundee (to run after red warning expired)

+ Edinburgh/Glasgow Queen Street HL via Falkirk High (to run after red warning
expired)
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All other routes were required to be route proved, however this was completed during the course of
Friday and the following routes were reopened later in the day after the expiration of the Met Office
amber warning for snow that had been in place since Wednesday 28th February 2018, and after
additional safety checks, however these services were not showing as operating under the
emergency timetable arrangements agreed Thursday 01st March 2018 for Friday 02nd March 2018:

o Glasgow Central/East Kilbride

» Glasgow Central/Newton
+ Glasgow Central/Neilston

7|Page




From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

From:

4:29

orce majeure  Snow

Sent: 01 March 2018 11:45

To:
Cc:

Subject: Force majeure Snow

All Notice is Hereby given of the Following Force Majeure Incident

28/02/18 and ongoing Severe Weather Incident

Incident log 1720282,

28/02/2018 13:30

Due to red warning issued by the met office :-

* The Met Office have issued a red warning of show valid from 15:00 on Wednesday 28th February until 10:00 on Thursday
* The Met Office have issued an amber weather warning for snow valid from 10:15 on Wednesday 28th February until 18:0t
+ The Met Office have issued a yellow weather warning for snow valid from 09:55 until 23:55 on Wednesday 28th February
* The Met Office have issued a yellow weather warning for show valid from 00:05 until 23:55 on Thursday st March

» The Met Office have issued a yellow weather warning for snow valid from 00:05 on Friday 2nd March until 23:55 on Satur

Key Route Strategy implemented as follows until 18¢0hrs:-
Glasgow/ Ayr

Glasgow / Carlisle WCML

Glasgow Queen St/ Edinburgh via E&G

Edinburgh/ Dundee via Kirkcaldy

Edinburgh - ECML

Full shut down of service throughout the RED affected area 1800hrs to 1000hrs.

Trust Incidents to date,

841437 SEVERE WEATHEREDB

28/02(18 - : UXe
28/02/18 841442 XQLG X9 SEVERE WEATHER GLC
28/02/18 841434 L XQLH TXg i SEVERE WEATHER PTH
28/02/18 841439 XQLM X9 SEVERE WEATHER MTH
28102118 842842 L VEDI SOV  2N13HORNFLRNCL
28102118 841611 XQLM X9 5L03 7 OVERTIME MTH
010318 845602 LXoLG : Xo .o SEVERE WEATHER GLC 28/02
28/02/18 841616 XOLH X9 1702 4 LOST PTH BLFD
28102118 841651 XQLN Koo 2398 3 LOST WEMYSBJ PYG
28/02/18 841461 XQLA X9 IT10 CHANGE OF ORIGIN

Note that this an ongoing incident

Regards




froms I

Sent: 08 May 2018 15:26

Subject: FW:; Subject: Notification of Force Majeure incidents
Attachments: FMO5_06_05_18.pdf

FYl. Haven't iooked at it yet

rrom: [
Sent: 08 May 2018 15:13
o: [N

Subject: ; Subject: Notification of Force Majeure Incidents

Notice is hereby given of a force Majeure incident on Saturday 05/05/18 to Sunday 07/05/18
Log reference 175,1778 21:15 06/05.18 {Log attached)

Trust Incident ref 009174

Best Regards

Abeilio Scotrail Performance

151 3t.Vincent Street, Glasgow, G2 bNJ.

‘Scotiail

Reareana’s Maviav

Abellio ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scotland Number SC450732. Registered office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building
36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1LU

This message is intended solely for the addressee and may contain confidential information. If you have received this message in etror, p
it back to us, and immediately and permanently delete it. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this message or in any

attachment.




58718 ! celL
Print View: Incident 1754778 (last updated: (08 May 2018 12:23). Not being actively controlied
incident Title: OHL DAMAGEEG4, 5 & 6 "files att" O/S
incident Start: 05/05/2018 21:21
Advised At: 05/05/2018 21:21
Paged:
Initiat Res ponse Advised: 05/05/2018 21:.22
Arrived At:

Train Movement Suspended:
On the Move:
Normal Working Resumed:

Booked In Order:

Incident Type: OHL Dew irement
Autumn Related: No

Area: SC - Scotiand

No Log:

Start Location:

Glasgow Central Bridge Sfreet Junction

End Location:

Line: ALL

Fault Number: 313228

Equipment Number: EG45&6

BTP Reference:

Other 3rd Party Reference:

Reported By: CATHCARTANSSC

Actioned By: SASJHGC

NOC Reportable: Yes

No Trains: No

Incident Closed: Yes

TDA:

TDA No. TRMC Full Can Part Can # Trains Delay Mins FTS/Div
009174 cala 236 92 123 2002 0
Events

Ref ?f::; Description g;eated lgl'ypdated Company

6 05/05/2018 Cathcart ECR advise that they have had a CB trip on electrical section EG 3,4,5 and
21:15:00 6. 2G88 between lite 6 and 7, 2F83 betw een line 8&7 2123 in platform 9.

8 05/05/2018 Cathcart ECR advise that they have reset EG3 at 2117, EG4&5 at 2118 , and EG6
21:19:00 at2119.

3 05/05/2018 QHL staff Cowlairs advised and on route to site
21:22:00

5 05/05/2018 MOM M.Scobie reports he has received a report from a MOP that w hilst at the
21:28:00 roadside at Salkeld Street, he observed 2 flashes and heard a foud bang, Also the
MOP has reported droppers are hanging below the contact wire.

11 05/05/2018 Initial advice to Transport Scotland on call,
21:28.00

14 05/05/2018 Cathcart ECR advise that they believe the fault to include electrical sections 4 and
hitps://ecil. clyx.net/CCil./NewApplication/incident/IncidentPrintView.aspx?args=FCO2B5325EFB741 ...
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5/8/18 CCIL
21:37:00 5. Blocked to Hectrics being arranged.

156 05/05/2018 CSL2 declared by Cantrol Duty Ops Manager
21:39:00
Lead Operations Controller: S. Sharman
Lead Information Controller: B.Sw eeney.
Asset Recovery Manager: H. Bw art
Disruptive event: OHL damage .
Performance impact: Significant

Prioritised Fan / Key Milestones

1, OHL staff to site Target 2200Hrs Achieved 2151
2. Make OHL Equipment safe.

3 Recover trapped passengers / trains

4 Establish extent of damage f access repairs

4 05/05/2018 2nd on cali OHL advised,
21:40:00

17 05/05/2018 Cathcart ECR advise block to electric traction imposed on EG 4,5 and 6 at 2143.
21:43:00

2 05/05/2018 AyriLargs Ardrossan/Gourock/Wemyss Bay - Glasgow Cenfral services to

21:44:00 terminate/start at Paisley Gilmour St. as per Contingency Plan, PY5 (NR Scotland
lssue 001 Date March 2018)

Service recavery
2026 cancelled

1 05/05/2018 Scala Message as follow:
21:44:00 Disruption at Glasgow Central High Level due to overhead line problem. Services to
from Ayr to start/terminate at Paisley Gilmour St. Major disruption expected to all
services. Updates to follow

Virgin Trains WC advised.

7  05/05/2018 Services trapped in area of Ohl. damaged section.
21:48:00 2GB6 2024 Gourock Glasgow approach to GG5261 signal [Up Ayr to Dow n Line

4].
2F83 2115 Glasgow Central - Ardrossan Harbour approach to (3G5470 signal
[Bow n Ayr].
2F82 2031 Ardrossan Harbour - Glasgow Central approach to GG5832 signat [Up
Ayrl.
2D50 2105 Paisley Canal - Glasgow Central approach to GG5842 signal [Up Ayr].
188 2048 Gourock - Glasgow Central approach to GG5846 signal [Up Ayr].

Services Trapped outw ith OHL damaged area,

2A13 2131 Kimarnock Glasgow GG5189 signal [Muirhouse].
1A15 Kitmarnock Glasgow GB5187 signal [Muirhouse].

229 2228 East Kilbride Glasgow [Crossmyloof station].
1L60 2112 Carlisle Glasgow [Kennishead station].

2MB3 2119 Nw ewton Glasgow [Pollokshields West station].
2123 2415 Glasgow Glasgow [Pollokshields East station].
2N25 2158 Neilston Glasgow [Queen Park station].

2N27 2228 Neilston Glasgow [Cathcart station].

2M87 2219 New ton Glasgow [King's Park station].

9 05/05/2018 2151Hrs OHL staff on site and confirm OHLE -w ire are dow n and are fouling Up
21:51:00  and Down Ayr and line 4 no traffic in or out on these lines

10 05/05/2018 BTP Control advised [ref 680] and a request for the Duty Inspector to call ICC
21:52:00 Glasgow with concern for public order in Glasgow Central Station.

12 05/05/2018 2T30 cancelled Paisley Gilmour St
21:54:00
20 05/05/2018 Station Duty Manager contacted and reports Glasgow Central at the moment is
21:55:.00 busy but not at lavels of concern.
SDM w ill w ork w ith BTP to manitor the amount of people in the station and should
levels become unsafe the station will be closed.

413 05/05/2018 Transport Scotland on call updated.
21:55:00
16 05/05/2018 BTP Duty Inspector updated w ith the incident so far and reports he has pulled

21:58:00 officers in from other locations to attend at Glasgow Central to assist w ith public
order.

The priority at the moment is the recovery of trapped trains and the safety of
passengers.

https: ffccl] . dyx.net/CCILMNewApplication/Incident/IncidentPrintView.aspx?args=FCI2B6325EFB741 ...
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The Duty Inspector mentioned coincidentally during the course of the call that
officers on duty at Bridge Street Subw ay Station observed a flash and heard a
hang from the OHL in the Eglinton Street area.

24 05/05/2018 Scala Update
22:06:00 Due to failure of the electricity supply at Glasgow Ceniral disruption is expected
until the end of the day.

impact:

Train services betw een Glasgow Central and Ayr will be cancelled, delayed or
terminated at and started back from Paisley Gilmour Street. All stations between
Glasgow Central and Paisley Gilmour Street will not be served.

Train services betw een Glasgow Central and Gourock will be cancalled, delayed
or terminated at and started back from Paisley Gilmour Street, All stations between
Glasgow Central and Paisley Giimour Street will not be served. .

Train services betw een Glasgow Central and Wermyss Bay will be cancelled,
delayed or terminated at and started back from Paisley Gilmour Street

Additional Information:

We are currently unable to run train services betw een Glasgow Central and
Paisley Gilmour St.

19 05/05/2018 MOM now on site and will liaise w ith the OHL depariment,
22:07:00

18 05/056/2018 NOC updated.
22:07.00

21 05/05/2018 OHL staff on site and confirm OHLE -w ire are dow n and are fouling Up and Down
22:10:00  Ayr and line 4 no traffic in or out on these lines

23 05/05/2018 MOM advises that the OHL staff are w alking through site to assess damage.
22:15.00

22 (5/05/2018 There are currently 5 trapped trains w ith passengers on board that require
22:20:00 evacuation.

a] 2G86 at GG5261 on line 4 at Bridge St Jn. (18 passengers).
b] 2F83 {2115 Glasgow Ceniral-Ardrossan Harbour] at GG5470 on line 7 (110
passengers)
¢] 2F82 [2031 Ardrossan Harbour-Glasgow Central] at GG5832 on the Up Ayr fine
at Bridge St Jn (92 passengers).
d] 2D60 [2105 Paisley Canal-Glasgow Central] at GG5842 on the up Ayr line at
Smithy Lye {7 passengers).
e] 1G88 [2048 Gourock-Glasgow Central] at GG5846 on the Up Ayr line in rear of
2060 {11 passengers).

At the moment there Is no pow er to these trains. OHL staff on site ars carrying out
an assessment to see if switching can be carried out to provide pow er enabling
them ta set back tow ards Paisley.

Concurrent to this arrangements are in hand to use diesel traction to rescue
passengers from the trapped trains in the event that pow er cannot be supplied.

25 (5/05/2018 MOM advises that they plan to evacuate 2G86 at Bridge Street and take
22:25:00 passengers clear via Salkeld Street and the access at Glasgow Central old box.

26 05/05/2018 Media on call advised.
22:31.00

27 05/05/2018 2234Hrs Prioritised Pan / Key Milestones Update
22:39:00 1. OHL staff to site Target 2200Hrs Achieved 2151
2. Make OHL Eguipment safe.
3 Recover trapped passengers / trains Target
(alb). 2G86 & 2F83 will be detrained by foot to Salkkeld St -
(c.d,e) 282 1G88 & 2D80 will be transfer via diesel recavery unit being arranged
from Corkerhill
4 Establish extent of damage / access repairs
2026 cancelled A Ayr services to terminate/start at Paisley Gitmour St.
28 05/05/2018 SDM at Glasgow Central in conjunction with the BTP advise that on grounds of
22:44:00 public safety the high level station will be closed.
On this basis no further services will be departed from Glasgow Central fonight,
the diesel services currently standing on the Muirhouse Lines will be brought into
the station in due course with no further w arkings.
The exit from the low level w il be maintained to allow access / egress fromthe
Argyle Line.

29 05/05/2018 RIO advises that 2G86 is now being evacuated [ 7 passengers]

22:46:00

30 05/05/2018 RIO advises that 2F83 is nhow heing evacuated. [20 passengers].
22:49:00
https:./fccil.clyx.net/CCIL/NewApplicationfincident/incidentPrintView.aspx?args=FC92B5325EFB741...
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05/05/2018 Route Infrastructure Director [DD] updated with circumstances.
22:52:00

05/05/2018 4th on cali advised.
22:52:00

(5/05/2018 OHL Cartsairs / Portobelio arranging material and resources as follow s:
23:00:00
4 x unimog made available, catenary & contact wire along with slow speed Sl's
and on route to Glasgow Cenfral

05/05/2018 22:38 2234 Hrs Prioritised Plan / Key Milestones Update

23:06:00 1. OHL staff to site Target 2200Hrs Achieved 2151
2. Make OHL Eguipment safe.
3 Recover trapped passengers / trains Target
(afh). 2686 & 2F83 will be detrained by foot to Salkeld St - Achieved 2305Mrs
(c,d,e) 2F82 1588 & 2060 w ilf be transfer via diesel recovery unit being arranged
from Corkerhil: Once passengers transfer completed return to Cardonald / Taxis.
4 Establish extent of damage / access repairs
2026 cancefied All Ayr services fo terminate/start at Paisley Gilmour St

06/05/2018 1299 accompanied by DTM (JC) has now departed Corkerhill.
00:04:00

06/05/2018 Service recovery of services on Cathcart Circle

00:19:00 2123 2115 Glasgow Central - Glasgow Central cancelled Pollackshiekls East
2N25 2158 Neilston - Glasgow Central cancelled at Queens Park
2N27 2228 Neilston - Glasgow Central cancelled at Cathcart
2MB83 2119 New ton (Lanark} - Glasgow Central cancelied at Pollockshields West
2M87 2219 New ton (Lanark} - Glasgow Central cancelled at Kings Park

Several routes requested for recovery of units to Shields/Corkerhill were
unsuccessful due to lack of driver route know ledge

08/05/2018 1299 now along side 2F82, 2 x disabled passengers being transferred,
00:19:00

06/05/2018 1299 now along side 2D60 (7 x people transferred)
00:32:00

06/05/2018 2M27 to run ECS to New ton Turnback sidings
00:41:00

06/05/2018 1299 now along side 1G88 ( 11 x transferred)
00:46:00

06/05/2018 0050Hrs 1299 now on the move to Cardonald
00:51:00

06/05/2018 Arrangements now being made to impose fufl isofation to allow fitters to secure

01:00:00 pans on 2G86 [pan damaged sets]. Diesel set being arranged by Corkerhilt to
assist damaged set in Glasgow Central. Then repairs will be carried out to OHL
damage.

06/05/2018 1299 at Cardonald

01:06:00

06/05/2018 2M83 to run ECS to Glasgow Central via New ton
01:14:.00

06/05/2018 Advised by Ayr WS that Driver of 5K73 at Ayr won't take ECS into Tow nhead EMU

01:17:00  sidings. Possible delay to ltem 89. TSDM advised.

06/05/2018 Customer Services Manager reports all passengers now taxied aw ay from
01:18:60  Cardonald.
There are now no stranded passangers at any location,
06/05/2018 2123 to run ECS to New ton Turnback sidings.
01.27.00
08/05/2018 MOM now stood dow n.
01:30:00
06/05/2018 Due to route availability and driver hours follow ing services to be stabled at given
01:33:00 stations:
2M83 at Pollockshields West (3 car 318269)
2i23 at Pollockshields East (3 car 318261) vice previously arranged New ton
Turnback siding

2N25 at Queens Park {3 car 314204)
2N27 at Cathcart (3 car 314203)

08/05/2018 SSMWSSC reports fiem 11 taken.
02:05:00 OHL staff will w ork within the limits of this nossession to undertake renairs as

https:tceil. ol yx.net/CCIL/MNewApplication/Incident/IncidentPrintView. aspx?args=FC92B5325EFB741...
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agreed w ith PICOP.

51 06/05/2018 SDM Glasgow Central reports all passengers now clear of the station. Netw ork Rail
02:05:00 Infrastructure
59 06/05/2018 1Z99 (Units 156514 and 156488) departed Corkerhill w ith DTM and Driver for ScotRail
02:30:00 Bridge Street to assist 5G86.
53 06/05/2018 WSSC still w aiting on confirmation of all pans have been drepped in Glasgow Netw ork Rai
02:41:00  Central station before isclation can be granted to OHLE Infrastructure
54 06/05/2018 ECR Cathcart report form 'B' issued to OHL staff to install isolation Netw ork Rail
03:09:00 Infrastructure
56 06/05/2018 BTP Duty Inspector debriefs as follow s: Netw ork Rail
03:20:00  All public were clear of station by 0205hrs. Infrastructure
Immediately before the decision w as taken to close the station, approx 3600
persons w ere reported on the concourse becoming increasingly unhappy with the
lack of train service.
Despite the above, no arrests took place.
55 06/05/2018 Isolation in place , fitters on site securing pantographs on fafled unit and assist Netw ork Ra#l
03:30:00 train now coupiing up. Infrastructure
62 06/05/2018 Yoker Team Leader {AC) repeorts pantographs secured on units 314205 & 314214. ScotRail
04:60:00
57 06/05/2018 OHL staff report fitters still w orking on coupling up to failed unit no timescale for it Netw ork Rait
04:20:00 to be on the move at present, therefore OHL staff are w orking round about the Infrastructure
failure and plan and due to change over times at 0700Hrs they are w orking
tow ards repairing equipment to allow isolation / possession to be cut back and
traffic being able to run on lines 1-4 the Cathcart side and the Ay lines will remain
blocked w ith a proposal of buses betw een Glasgow Cenfral and Paisley
58 06/05/2018 Contingency to remain in place for start of work as follow s, as per Contingancy Netw ork Rail
04:37.00 Pan, PYS: Infrastructure
Ayr/Largs-Ardrossan/GourockMiemyss Bay to Glasgow Central services to
terminate/start at Paisley Gimour St.
{Alterations to contingency may occur due to crew and set availability)
Paisley Canal to Glasgow Central services withdraw n
683 06/05/2018 DTM JC reports adaptor coupling attached. Units will run at & mph to Corkerhilt. ScotRait
05:05:00
60 06/05/2018 Scala Message Published as follow s with expiry time of 1200hrs: MNetw ork Rail
05:06:00 Infrastructure
Due to failure of the glectricity supply at Glasgow Central disruption is expected.
Impact: Train services betw een Glasgow Central and Ayr will be cancelled,
delayed or terminated at and started back from Paisley Gilmour Street. Train
services betw een Glasgow Central and Gourock will be cancelled, delayed or
terminated at and started back from Paisley Gilmour Street. Train services between
Glasgow Central and Wenwyss Bay will be cancelled, delayed or terminated at and
started back from Paisley Gilmour Street Train services betw een Glasgow Central
and Largs/Ardrossan will be cancelled, delayed or terminated at and started back
from Paisley Gilmeour Street. All stations betw een Glasgow Central and Paisley
Gilmour Street w il not be served. Paisley Canal-Glasgow Central Services
w ithdraw n Additional Information: We are currently unable to run train services
. between Glasgow Central and Paisley Gimour St,
61 06/05/2018 WSSC advise 1299 departed Bridge Street for Corkerhill depot. ScotRail
05:25:00
64 0B/05/2018 OHL supervisor reports that to effect full repairs of Muirhouse lines and Ayr lines Netw ork Rait
05:30:00 would take most of today untif at least approx 1700hrs. Infrastructure
An alternative plan which has now been agreed fo by ICC Glasgow is that w ith the
failed set now clear of the dew irement area, the focus initially w it be to restore the
Muirhouse lines for narmal traffic ASAP.
Thereafter the wires on the single line and dow n Ayr betw een fine 4 and kne 7 will
be strapped up and left in situ untl a repair can be effected tonight; this will mean
that the Ayr lines can be handed back mid morning w ith bi-directional running over
the Up Ayr line betw een Bridge Street Jn and Smithy Lye. Given the reduced
traffic levels on Sundays this will have the lesser operational kmpact.
ICC has requested a robust estimate for full repairs in this alternative scenario
such that the required track access can be granted tonight.
65 06/056/2018 OHL staff report three machines now w orking on OHLE estimate for agreed plan Netw ork Rai
06:19:00  all going w el 0815Hrs Infrastructure
66 06/05/2018 West Coast Rallw ay advised regarding potential impact to 5250 0718 Poimadie to Netw ork Rail

hitps:focil.clye.net!/CCIL/NewApplication/Incident/incidentPrintView, aspx?args=FCO2B5325EFB741...
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68 06/05/2018 WSSC advise that the assist set and the six car failure are struggling up the incline
06:22:00  at Drumbreck. Stll making progress but very slow Further progress reports will be
advised.
67 06/05/2018 FSDM advised.
06:24:00
79 06/05/2018 Shift changeaver within Scotland ROC, staff resource now detailed as follow s:
06:30:00

Lead Operations Controller:
Lead Information Controller:
Asset Recovery Manager:
Disruptive event: OHL damage Bridge Straet Jn
Performance impact: Significant

Revised Prioritised Plan / Key Milestones

(a) Estabiish handback time for electric traction on Lines 1 Up, 1 Down, Line 3, Line
4 and Up Ayr, with Dow n Ayr fit for diesel traction only : Planned 0830hrs, yst fo
be achieved.

(b) Resource drivers for the 7 sets still in situ from the original incident: Planned
0930hrs, yet to achieved.

(c) Establish strategy for subsequent OLE access this evening to effect
permanent repairs; Planned 1100hrs, yet to be achieved.

(d) Confirms early shut dow n arrangements w ith TOC's to facilitate the concluding
OLE repairs this evening: Flanned 1200hrs, yet to be achieved.

68 06/05/2018 1299 Arrives Corkerhill Depot.
06:50:00

switch blade w as damaged by a tamper, the asset has been locked normal since
that date. S&T advised and requested to attend with a view to establishing if a
reverse detection can be obtained on the asset, how ever should the points require
to be maintained normal, all class 2 Ihverclyde services booked to call at
Cardonald, Hilington East and West w ould be unable to call in the dow n direction
only for the duration of the restricted access/egress fo Glasgow Central via the Up
Ayr only post the 0815hrs recovery milestene. Control Duty Ops Manager updated
regarding the high possibility of a replacement bus service being required to cover
these 3 stations.

84 06/05/2018 Local bus ticket acceptance requested for all avaifable routes affected.
07:¢0:00

71 08/05/2018 Ansaphone message left for the ARM, {H.Ew art] to contact Scotland IC Wast.
07.00:00

72 08/05/2018 Ansaphone message left for TSM Central [J.Maguire} to contact Scotland ROC.
07:08:00

73 06/05/2018 Follow ing dialogue betw een LOC and ARM, the foliow ing criteria established:
07:20:00

{a) Root cause of the dew irement has yet to be established.
{b) No specific detailed list of asset damage readily available.
{c) Envisaged that all remaining damaged OLE w ill be tied up for 0818hrs/0830hrs
with EG 1-6 complete again being live, with purely a BTET being imposed on the
Dow n Ayr betw een Bridge Street Jn and Smithy Lye - OK for diesel traction.
{d} Confirmed that 383 points will be OK to run electric traction through reverse.
{e) An early shut dow n of approx 2200hrs will be required this evening fo enable
fuli repairs to be effected, how ever actual extent of the associated isolation &
possession required has yet to be established.

75 06/05/2018 Recovery of stranded sefs willbe as follow s:
07:30:00
(a) 2F83 standing GG5470 to be returned back into Glasgow Central HL.
(b) 4 drivers being conveyed by taxi to recover 2M83 at GB5070 [Maxw ell Park
stn], 2123 at GB5103 [Pollokshields East sin], 2N25 at GC5099 [Queens Park stn] &
2N27 at GCH087 [Cathcart stn).
(c) Follow ing recavery of the above 4 sets in the Cathcart area, 3 of the drivers

w il then be conveyed by a DMU ex Glasgow Central via the Dow n Ayr to provide

driver resource for 2F82 at GG5832, 2060 at GG5842 & 1G88 at GG5836 all on the

Up Ayr betw een Shields Jn and Bridge Street Jn.

74 (8/05/2018 Control Duty Operations Manager consulted and the follow ing recovery of trains
07:30-00  will take nlace ance initial renairs are complete:

https:/ecil.clyx.net/CCIL/INewApplication/Incident/IncidentPrintView. aspx?args=FCO2B5325EFB741...
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Phase 1 recovery
{1] - Drivers will be in position at the follow ing stations ta recover trains;
Pollokshields West, Pollokshields East, Queen Park and Cathcart at from 08:00.
Phase 2 recovery
[2] - 2F83 on the line 7 will be recovered then a class 156 unit will be utilised to
canvey drivers an the Down Ayr line to the fellow ing trains on the Up Ayr line;
2F82, 2D60 and 1G88.
76 06/05/2018 TSM Central confirms 493A requires a new switch and w ilt not be able to be
07:43:00 reversed, therefore class 2 Inverclyde services booked to call at Cardonald,
Hilington East and West would be unable to call in the down direction only for the
duration of the restricted access/egress to Glasgow Central via the Up Ayr only
post the 0830hrs recovery milestone.
82 06/05/2018 Four stand-by buses moved from engineering w orks to run betw een Glasgow and
08:00:00 Paisley Gilmour Street.
77 06/05/201-updates revised expectation is for the isolation handback to be 0900hrs,
08:18:00 follow ing subsequent issues that require to be addressed prior to handback.
78 06/05/2018 OHL. staff (IF) advise estimate for hand back now (0930hrs as work required on a
08:48:00 cross over wire and registration arm at 386 points.
80 06/05/2018 Follow ing train plan being implemented at present:
09:03:00 Ayrshire services
xx15/45 from Ayr forming xx10/40 from Paisley starting from 0845 from Ayr &
0940 from Paisley
xx23 from Gourock forming xx35 from Paisley (2 hourly service only due to unit
resources) starfing from 1023 ex Gourock and 1135 ex Paisley Gilmour Street.
xx54 from Largs forming xx16 from Kilw inning
81 06/05/2018 ARM updates handback mifestone for 0930hrs remains achievable,
09:17:00
83 06/05/2018 Additional 15 buses requested to assist.
09:18:00
85 06/05/2018 PICOP for Cenfral Strategy possession item 11
09:37:00 contacted, as 0930hrs milestone is now overdue; PICOP advises OHL staff
currently conversing with Cathcart ECR beside himw ith a view to re-energising,
how ever expected follow ing this, only a few minutes will be required for support
staff to upflift possession protection.
87 08/05/2018 PICOP confirms possession item 11 cancelled.
09:44:00
86 06/05/2018 SSMWSSC updates superseding isolation has been issued BTET for electrical
10:10:00  section EG5J and EGA4C.
88 068/05/2018 TSDM South updates the 2 car ¢l 156 DMU at the top of platform 7 w ith relief
10:18:00  drivers to recover 2F82 at G(35832, 2060 at GG5842 & 1688 at GG5836 all on the
Up Ayr betw een Shields Jn and Bridge Street Jn. SSMWSSC updated.
a0 06/05/2018 ScotRail Alliance 10:30 Conference - Agenda
10:30:.00
[1] Recovery of stranded frains, 2F83 standing GG5470 ta be returned back into
Glasgow Central HL, 4 drivers being conveyed by taxi to recover 2M83 at GB5070
[Maxw ell Park stn], 2123 at GB5103 [Pollokshields East stn], 2N25 at GC5089
[Queens Park stn] & 2N27 at GC5087 {Cathcart stn], 3 of the drivers wilt then be
conveyed by a DMU ex Glasgow Central via the Dow n Ayr te provide driver
resource for 2F82 at GG5832, 2D60 at GG5842 & 1G838 at GG5836 all on the Up
Ayr betw een Shields Jn and Bridge Street Jn.
[2] Contingency Flan
[3] Proposed early shut dow n to faciltate full repairs.
89 08/05/2018 All sets now recovered with the exception of 5T30 stabled in Paisley DGL.
11:02:00
93 06/05/2018 Request had been made for coaches for 1M30 0422 Glasgow Central -
11:30:00  Manchester Airport {Mon 07.05] to be brought into Glasgow Central from Corkerhill
Depot before 19:00 tonight, how ever TPE unable to resource a driver. 1M30 0422
Glasgow Central - Manchester Airport will be started enroute tomorrow w ith ECS
5M90 departed Corkerhill and running direct via the Clydesdale route.
91 06/05/2018 ScotRail Alliance 13:00Conference - Agenda
13:00:00

[1] Timescales to recover asset with full repairs.
Marie Anne Hendry, Infrastructure Maintenance Engineer details:
Summarv of damaaa helow . Al staff fram Partohelln. Carstairs and Cow lairs will

hitps./fecll.clyx.net/CCIL/NewApplication/incident/IncidentPrintView.aspx?args=FCO2B5325EFB741...
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CCIL
et g mt g ot e+ et e e 1 e
attend site. We have 3 in-house unimogs and 3 contractor machines booked to
assist and for standby duty.

Jwill be on site from 1800 hrs and will arrange 30 min updates from site.

lw ill pul together a timeline later this afternoon for reference through the evening.
The plan will be to handback 0500 hrs Monday morning.

U A U UL

L/00/05

New Jumper double drape

New brow n boveri section insulator
New feed jumper

L/00/06 - 10 ft of contact spliced in

L/00/07 - new double drape and 2x10ft of contact wire (crossover and dn ayr)
1./00/08 - 2x 10ft of contact wire

L/00/09 - knuckle missing new one required

L/00/0 - V dropper and turn buckles for 51

New registration arm and droppers/ jumpers over 10 structures

[21 Summary of trains affected and rundow n of services to allow repairs to be
started.

LAST SERVICES DEPARTING GLASGOW CENTRAL:

To AYR: 1830 1K77 Glasgow Central - Ayr

To LARKHALL: 16:36 2M88 Glasgow Central - Larkhall

To LARGS: 1740 2745 Glasgow Central - Largs

To EAST KILBRIDE ; 1718 2J32 Glasgow Central - East Kilbride
To WEMY SS BAY: 1750 1W51 Glasgow Central - Wemyss Bay
To NEILSTON: 1653 2N30 Glasgow Cenfral - Neilston

To PAISLEY CANAL : 1712 2D45 Glasgow Central - Paisley Canal
To GOURQCK: 1820 2G43 Glasgow Central - Gourock

To KILMARNOCK: 1803 1A02 Glasgow Central - Kilmarnock

To ARDROSSAN HARBOUR: 1655 1F87 Glasgow Centrai - Ardrossan Harbour

LAST SERVICES ARRIVING GLASGOW CENTRAL:

BEPARTING AYR: 1K70 1715 Ayr - Glasgow Central arriving at Glasgow Central at
18:04

DEPARTING LARKHALL: 2M87 1654 Larkhall - Glasgow Central arriving at
Glasgow Central 17:42

DEFPARTING LARGS: 2T42 1654 Largs - Glasgow Central arriving at Glasgow
Central at 17:58

DEPARTING EAST KILBRIDE : 2J11 1755 East Kilbride to Glasgow Central arriving
at 18:26

DEPARTING WEMY SS BAY : 1W48 1650 Wemyss Bay - Glasgow Central arriving
Glasgow Central at 17:39

DEPARTING NEILSTON : 2N33 1748 Neilston - Glasgow Central arriving Glasgow
Central at 18:17

DEPARTING PAISLEY CANAL: 2D46 1735 Paisley Canal - Glasgow Central arriving
at Glasgow Central at 17:54

DEPARTING GOURQOCK: 2G40 1723 Gourock - Glasgow Central arriving at
Glasgow Centralat 18:13

DEPARTING KILMARNOCK: 1A17 1855 Kilmarnock - Glasgow Central arriving at
Glasgow Central at 17:40

[3] Replacement bus service to facilitate the train plan
No concerns,

92 06/05/2018 Revised Prioritised Plan / Key Miestones Netw ork Rail
Infrastructure

(a) Establish strategy and timescales for disruptive access fo facilitate repairs:
Panned 1330hrs, achieved 1300hrs following conclusion of 1300hrs conference.
(b) Confirm 1900hrs shut dow n arrangements w ith TOC's to facilitate the
concluding OLE repairs this evening: Panned 1300hrs, achieved 1250hrs,

(¢) Advise key stakeholders regarding planned staggered possessionfisclation

hitps://ocil. clyx.net/CCIL/INewApplication/incident/IncidentPrintView.aspx?args=FCO2B5325EFB741 ... 8110
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arrangements of 1900hrs/2200hrs: Planned 1430hrs, achieved 1358hrs.
{d} Grant initial 1900hrs possession & isolation of electrical sections EG3, 4, 5 & 6;
Planned 1900hrs, yet to achieved.
{e) Supersede reduced possession and isolation w ith the full Glasgow Central
Strategy limits and isolation of EG1 - 6 complete: Planned 2200hrs, yet to be
achieved.
{f) Conclude repairs and cancel isolation: Planned 0500hrs, yet ta be achieved.

o4 0610512018 PicoPw il be || | - -

17:06:00

95 06/05/2018 Possession granted.
19:16:00

96 06/05/2018 -advises B permit w as issued at 2040,
21:14.00

97 06/05/2018 Full possession limits granted.
22:04:00

o8 06/05!2018“9@5533 ohe of the unimogs has fafled and currently being off tracked
23:12:00  and wiltbe replaced hy one of the contingent unimogs thatis on site. This failure is
not envisaged {o have any detrimental affect that w ould jeopardise the 0500
handback.
89 07/05/2018 OHL repairs going to plan.
00:30:00
100 07/05/2018 -dvise most of the core works completed and confidence remains high
03:05:00  for an 0500 handback.

101 07!05f2018-rep0rts that all machines off tracked and isolation being removed, Staff

04:02:00  will carry out finat w alk through the site and take height and stagger
measurements.

102 07/05/201-rep0rls OLEw orks completed and FCOP in process of cancelling
04:29:00 possession.

103 07/05/2018 Possession given up.
04:40:00

104 07/05/2018 OHL staff -informs he has chserved tw o trains through the affected
05:11:00  section and allin order. FMS signed off.

105 07/05/2018 E&PME-updates all parts involved have been quarantined and an
10:43:00 investigation will be undertaken this w eek to establish root cause.

Trains

Ref Train ID Start Date/Time Starting Locafion Terminating Location Vehicie Number Unit Number

314214 + 314205 -

1 2G86 05/05/2018 20:24:.00 Gourack Glasgow Central High Level

Services

No Services for this incident

SRCT (last update d: 05 May 2018 09:25)

Service Recovery Commencement Time:
hhmm

Time of 1st Conference:
hhmm

Agreed SRCT Review Time:
hhmm

Progressing to Normal Working Time:
hhmm

Time Service Recovery Closed:
hhrim

Agreed Plan and Conference Record:
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No SRCT Farticipants

Routes

Route Code
SC

Control Centres

Control Centre

CCIL

Route Description

Scotland

8C - Scotland Operations / Infrastructure Control

Sections

Section Name

Scotland - OM/ IMDM Glasgow CH
Scotland - OM/ [MDM Motherw ell

Companies Affected

Campany Code
HA
EH
NR
WA
HF
EA
ES

Files

Date

06/05/2018 00:00:00
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
(6/05/2018 00:00:00
06/05/2018 00:00:00

06/05/2018 00:00:00

Company Name

ScotRail

CrossCouniry

Netw ork Rail Infrastructure
DB Cargo

Virgin Trains West Coast
First TransPennine Express
Caledonian Sleepers

Notified

05/05/2018 21:25:26
05/05/2018 21:25:25
05/05/2018 21:25:26
05/05/2018 21:25:25
05/05/2018 21:25:25
05/05/2018 21:25:25
05/05/2018 21:25:25

File
WP20180506104618Pro.jng
WP20180508085341Pro.jpg
WP20180506085334Fr0.jpg
WP20180508085304Pro.jpg
WP20180508085237Pro.jpg
WP20180508085220Pro.jpg
WP20180508085210Pro.jpg
WP20180508085008Pr0.jpg
WP20180506084914Pro.jpg
WP20180508084832Pro.jpg
IMG1005.JPG

IMG1004.JPG

IMG1003.JPG

IMG1002.JPG
201805050hldamage3.jpy
20180505¢0hldamage?2.jpg

201805050hidamage.jpg

File Desc

Pics attached
Pics attached
Pics attached
Fics attached
Fics attached
Pics attached
Pics attached
Fics aitached
Pics attached
Pics attached
Pics attached
Pics attached
Pics attached
PFics attached
Pics attached
Fics attached

Fics attached
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Rail

Buchanan House, 58 Port Dundas Road, Glasgow G4 OHF
Direct Ling: 0141 272 7108, Fax: 0141 272 7537

TRANSPORT
SCOTLAND

CGMHDHAIL ALBA

Your ref: letter of
19" March 2018

Our ref:
ScotRail Force
Majeure request

Date:
10 May 2018

cou [N

Weather events 28" February-2" March 2018: ScotRail request for force majeure

Thank you for your letter of 19" March, requesting that Transport Scotland grant relief from
performance failures under the Franchise Agreement due to the occurrence of Force Majeure
Events that arose from the weather events of 28" February - 2" March 2018.

Farmally, in your letter you advised:;

“ASR claims relief/derogation for all non-compliances with the Franchise Agreement atising
from the above Force Majeure Event, including without fimitation.-

s in respect of all resultant failures fo comply with the SLC and the adoption of
Emergency Timetables on the applicable dates;

o in respect of any SQUIRE failures arising and

+ agreement that all PPM failures incurred on the above dales are excluded for the
purposes of calculating resuits against the performance Benchmarks under Schedule
7.1 of the Franchise Agreement (Train Operating Petformance).”

After consideration of your claim, we are advising the following:

1. We are not in a position to grant relief/derogation from non-compiiances in respect of
Schedule 7.3 (SQUIRE). Paragraph 3.2 of Schedule 10.4 of the Franchise Agreement
makes it clear that Force Majeure Event relief does not apply to the Franchisee's
obligations in Schedule 7.3 (SQUIRE).

2. Similarly we are not in a position to grant relief/derogation from non-compliances in
respect of Schedule 7.2 (KP/s and Journey Time Metric). Paragraph 3.2 of Schedule
10.4 of the Franchise Agreement makes it clear that Force Majeure Event felief does not
apply to the Franchisee's obligations in Schedule 7.2 (KPIs and Journey Time Metric).

D)
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3. Transport Scotland will grant your claim to the extent that all PPM failures incurred on 28
February 2018 and on 1 March 2018 wili be excluded for the purposes of calculating
results against the performance Benchmarks under Schedule 7.1 of the Franchise
Agreement (Train Operating Performance). This will be actioned by deleting all trains
from the record for those two days, both those planned to run and those which met PPM.

This decision is given subject to the following conditions:

e That it sets no precedent for the award of relief in respect of a Force Majeure Events,
Each and every occurrence and subsequent claim will be considered on the basis of
the evidence submitted in support of any claim.

« That the adjustment to PPM for those days sets no precedent for this being done in
future; and

+ That ScotRail undertake and provide to us, revised calculations which show clearly
both how PPM for those days and the period as a whole would stand, both with and
without the correction for those two days.

The correction o PPM can be implemented as an adjustment to the period 12 data the
next time a formal Franchise Performance Report is prepared and supplied to Transport
Scotland. The same approach can also be followed with the sepatate cancellations and
capacity provided benchmarks.

4. Transport Scotland will not grant your claim that PPM failures incurred on Friday 2"
March be excluded for the purposes of calculating results against the performance
Benchmarks under Schedule 7.1 of the Franchise Agreement (Train Operating
Performance). This is because a limited agreed timetable was in place by 2200 hrs the
evening before, and there was an amber weather warning in place at that stage (so
passengers had ‘fair warning' of what would run on the Friday and under what
conditions).

5. Transport Scotland is not prepared to grant your request for a blanket “relief/derogation
for all non-compliances with the Franchise Agreement arising from the above Force
Majeure Event, including without limitation, in respect of all resuitant failures to comply
with the SLC and the adoption of Emergency Timetables on the applicable dates”.
Paragraph 3.1 of Schedule 10.4 of the Franchise Agreement makes it clear that “the
Franchisee shall not be responsible for any failure to perform any of its obligations under
this Agreement, nor shall there be any contravention of this Agreement if and to the
extent that such failure is caused by any Force Majeure Event’. [n our view, the onus
is on you to ask for any relief on a specific item-by-item basis, providing sufficient
supporting information to justify each claim.

Yours sincerely

Acting Franchise Contract Manager
Transport Scotland

(0141) 272 7108/Blackberry: | EGNNGG_G:
(@)
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From: _
Sent: 10 May 2018 13:14
T e

Subject: RE: Notification of force majeure events

Thank you for your letter and consideration of our request.

ScotRail performance team — can you please provide me with the revised PPM calculations requested at para 3 of
Allan’s letter as soon as possible ?

Regards

Classified as INTERNAL

Afrium Court, 50 Waterloo St, Glasgow, G2 6HQ.

Scotfail

SCoTiANG'S RAILWAY

Abellio ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scolland Numbear SC450732. Registered office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building
36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1L.U

This message is intended solely for the addressee and may contain confidential information. H you have received this message in error,
it back to us, and immediately and permanently delete it. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this message or in any
altachment.

rrom: [

Sent: 10 May 2018 12:36
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. 1

Subject: RE: Notification of force majeure events

Please find attached response to your notification of Force Majeure event dated 19 March 2018 and the
additional information provided and the further information provided 16 April 2018.

Kind regards,

Transport Scotland
Buchanan House

58 Port Dundas Road
Glasgow

G4 OHF

For agency and travel information visit our website

Transport Scotland, the national transport agency
Comhdhalit Alba, buidheann naiseanta na comhdhail

From:
Sent: 19 March 2018 10:03

Please see attached letter and supporting information.
As always happy to discuss.

Regards



From: _on behalf of Minister for Transport and the Islands
Sent: 10 May 2018 12:03

To:

Cc:

Subject; RE: Abeilio ScotRail - Ministerial correspondence - Force Majeure claim - "Beast

from the East"

Thanks-

Mr Yousaf has noted.

Private Secretary to the Minister for Transport and the Islands

transportminister@gov.scot

All e-mails and attachments sent by a Ministerial Private Office to any other official on behalf of a Minister relating to a decision,
request or comment made by a Minister, or a note of a Ministerial meeting, must be filed appropriately by the recipient.
Private Offices do not keep official records of such e-mails or attachments.

Scottish Ministers, Special advisers and the Permanent Secretary are covered by the terms of the Lobbying {Scotland) Act 2016.
See www . lobbying.scot

Sent: 10 May 2018 10:25

To: Mini
Cc:

Subject: Abellic ScotRail - Ministerial correspondence - Force Majeure claim - "Beast from the East”

Minister

Background:

Qur franchise agreement with Abellio ScotRail allows Transport Scotland to consider relief from some
performance obligations contained in the agreement if a Force Majeure event occurs. ScotRail submitted a
claim for such relief following the weather front which became known as the “Beast from the East” which
affected most of Scotland between 28 February 2018 and 2 March 2018, resulting in amber weather
warnings and an unprecedented red weather warning

As per the franchise agreement ScotRail notified Transport Scotland of its intention to submit a Force
Majeure claim (within 2 days of the event itself) which was received on 19 March 2018. Stating that
ScotRail is claiming relief for “all non-compliances with the FA arising from the Force Majeure Event,
including without limitation:-

. In respect of all failures to comply with the SLC and the adoption of the Emergency Timetables on the
applicable dates;
. In respect of any SQUIRE failures arising; and




. Agreement that all PPM failures incurred on the above dates are excluded for the purposes of | '
calculating results against the performance Benchmarks under Schedule 7.1 of the Franchise Agreement
(Train Operating Performance).”

Transport Scotland met with ScotRail to discuss the claim on 28 March 2018 and additional information
was submitted in support of the claim on 16 Aprit 2018

Considerations:
Transport Scotland sought some preliminary advice from SGLD and have subsequently met to discuss
merits of the claim and agree a way forward.

After careful consideration of the evidence available, Transport Scotland has decided the following:

A. Transport Scotland will grant the claim that, “all PPM failures incurred on the 28 February and 1 March
2018 and they will be excluded for the purposes of calculating results against the performance Benchmarks
under Schedule 7.1 of the Franchise Agreement (Train Operating Performance)”. This will be actioned by
deleting all trains from the record for those two days, both those planned to run and those which met PPM.

We have also imposed the following conditions to this decision:

. That it sets no precedent for the award of a force majeure in future. Each and every occurrence and
subsequent claim will be considered on the basis of the evidence submitted in support of any claim.

. That the adjustment to PPM for those days sets no precedent for this being done in future; and,

. That ScotRail undertake and provide fo us, revised calculations which show clearly both how PPM
for those days and the period as a whole would stand, both with and without the correction for those two
days.

B. Transport Scotland will not grant the claim for the PPM failures incurred on Friday 2nd March “to be
excluded for the purposes of calculating results against the performance Benchmarks under Schedule 7.1
of the Franchise Agreement (Train Operating Performance)”.

This is because a limited agreed timetable was in place by 2200 the evening before, and there was an
amber weather warning in place at that stage (so passengers had ‘fair warning’ of what would run on the
Friday and under what conditions).

C. Furthermore, Transport Scotland are not prepared to grant the request for a blanket “relief/derogation for
all non-compliances with the Franchise Agreement arising from the above Force Majeure Event, including
without limitation, in respect of all resultant failures to comply with the SLC and the adoption of Emergency
Timetables on the applicable dates”. In our judgement, it is incumbent on you to ask for any derogation on
a specific item-by-item basis, providing sufficient supporting information to justify each claim.

D. Likewise, Transport Scotland cannot grant the claim for any SQUIRE failures arising from this event,
because the purpose of the SQUIRE regime is to promote high standards of station service to passengers,
in particular, it is under conditions like those faced during the weather event that station standards need to
be as high as possible.

Recommendation:
The Minister is invited to note the contents of this e-mail




Transport Scotland
Buchanan House
58 Port Dundas Road
Glasgow

G4 OHF

For agency and travel information visit our website

Transport Scotland, the national transport agency
Comhdhail Alba, buidheann naiseanta na comhdhait
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From:
Sent: 10 May 2018 10:25

To: Minister for Transport and the Islands
Ce: _

Subject: Abellio ScotRail - Ministerial correspondence - Force Majeure claim - "Beast from
the East”

Minister

Background:

Qur franchise agreement with Abellio ScotRalil allows Transport Scotland to consider relief from some
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

As per the franchise agreement ScotRail notified Transpoert Scotland of its intention to submit a Force
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

. Agreement that all PPM failures incurred on the above dates are excluded for the purposes of
calculating results against the performance Benchmarks under Schedule 7.1 of the Franchise Agreement
(Train Operating Performance).”

Transport Scotland met with ScotRail fo discuss the claim on 28 March 2018 and additional information
was submitted in support of the claim on 16 April 2018

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

A. Transport Scotland will grant the claim that, "all PPM failures incurred on the 28 February and 1 March
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
. That ScotRail undertake and provide to us, revised calculations which show clearly both how PPM

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
without limitation, in respect of all resultant failures to comply with the S1.C and the adoption of Emergency
Timetables on the applicable dates”. In our judgement, it is incumbent on you to ask for any derogation on
a specific item-by-item basis, providing sufficient supporting information to justify each claim.

D. Likewise, Transport Scotland cannot grant the claim for any SQUIRE failures arising from this event,
because the purpose of the SQUIRE regime is to promote high standards of station service to passengers;
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

For agency and fravel information visit our website

Transport Scottand, the national transport agency
Comhdhail Alba, buidheann naiseanta na comhdhail



From:

Sent: 19 March 2018 10.03

To:

Cec:

Subject: RE: Notification of force majeure events

Attachments: Email letter re Beast from the East.pdf; Force Majeure background.docy; Force

Majeure.xlsx

Please see attached letter and supporting information.
As always happy to discuss.

Regards

Classified as INTERNAL

Atrium Court, 50 Waterloo St, Glasgow, G2 6HQ.

ScotiRail

SCOTIAND'S AAILWAY

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

pear

Further to your email of 28+ February, with respect to the snow evenis of that week.

On & March,-(ScotRaiI) advised _that they were pulling together the

details of the daily service alterations/implications, and the proposed treatments, as follows:

_is pulling together details of the daily service alferations/implications and proposed
treatment for me this week. I'd propose that we review thaf once available and agree overall
treatment before any adjustments are implemented by the performance teams.

Now, we have not as yet received these defails; and, given the franchise requirement that we
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

EES S F I IS EE RSP EE LR L LR LR EEE LR AL L LR EE S E RS

This e-mail {(and any files or other attachments transmitted with it) is intended solely for the attention of the
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

Tha am post-d seo {(agus faidhle neo ceanglan comhia ris) dhan neach neo luchd-ainmichte a-mhain. Chan eil e
ceadaichte a chleachdadh ann an doigh sam bith, a’ toirt a-steach coraichean, foillseachadh neo sgaoileadh, gun
chead. Ma's e is gun d’'fhuair sibh seo gun fhiosd’, bu choir cur as dhan phost-d agus lethbhreac sam bith air an t-
siostam agaibh agus fios a leigeil chun neach a sgaocil am post-d gun dail.

Dh’fhaodadh gum bi teachdaireachd sam bith bho Riaghaltas na h-Alba air a chlaradh neo air a sgrudadh airson
dearbhadh gu bheil an siostam ag obair gu h-éifeachdach neo airson adhbhar laghail eile. Dh’fhaocdadh nach eil

beachdan anns a’ phost-d seo co-ionann ri beachdan Riaghaltas na h-Alba.
ok R R kR kokoR R Rk R R kR ok kR ok R R R kR R ok kR sk k ckck Rk sk skkok ok ek ok sk sk ke ko kR ok sk sk skokok ok ok
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From:

Sent: 13 June 2018 19:23

To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: Notification of force majeure events
Attachments: P12 Schedule 7 Ammendments.xlsx

'

Apologies for the delay in getting back to you.

-as provided the attached suggested update to P12 FPR Schedule 7 tables. [f acceptable this will provide
the baseline for updating your records and subsequent periodic figures.

Hope this gives you what you need and please let me know if you have any queries or comments.

Thanks

Classified as INTERNAL

Atrium Court, 50 Waterloo St, Glasgow, G2 6HQ.

Abellic ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scotland Number SC450732. Registered office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building
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
Sent: 13 June 2018 11:21
To:
Cc:
Subject: FW: Notification of force majeure events

— My email of 31 May refers; this item is still outstanding. | would be grateful if we could get
some action on it, as it would provide a more robust assessment of where ScotRail's performance

has actually got to, and to ensure accurate record-keeping on my part, | do need to see the
underlying detail | initially requested in my email to you of 22 May.p_

From:
Sent: 31 May 2018 10:54
To:
Cc:
Subject: FW: Notification of force majeure events

-— further to earlier; | have sighted the period 1 franchise report, but the numeric performance
data included there had not been updated to allow for your force majeure claim. | would be
ci;rateful if you could confirm the revised data, by period as well as sector group. Thanks ||}

From:m

Sent: a :33

Subject: RE: Notification of force majeure events
Hi -
Thank you for this. | am now doing a cross-check on the numbers.

You advise an MAA — to which period does this relate — P12, P13, or P01 of the current year?
| would also like to see a breakdown of the period 12 data by sector group, so | can keep my

records properly updated. Also, if | could have updated tables {to P01) of the tables which were on
page 13 and page 14 of the Period 13 report. Thanks

From:
Sent: 22 May 2018 14:05
To:
Cc:

Subject: RE: Notification of force majeure events

Thank you for your letter considering our Force Majeure relief request and agreeing to grant relief for PPM failures
in respect of 28 February and 1% March 2018 {subject to the methodology & conditions stated, which we note and
agree).

As requested, please find the requested calculations showing the impact on Periodic and MAA PPM of applying this
treatment.



Period 12

Planned | PPM

Trains Passes PPM
Current 53,740 46,545 | 86.6%
PPM with 28/2 & 1/3 removed 51,481 46,186 | 89.7%
Difference -2,259 -359 | 3.1%
MAA

Planned | PPM

Trains Passes PPM
Current 756,870 675,897 | 89.3%
PPM with 28/2 & 1/3 removed 754,611 675,638 | 89.5%
Difference -2,259 -350 | 0.2%

Can you please confirm if this is sufficient to allow the adjustment to be applied and submitted with the next

availahle Franchise Performance Report?
Please accept my apologies for the delay in responding to you on this.

Happy to discuss further —and am sure that_wauid be too if there any queries from the
Performance perspective.

Regards

Classified as INTERNAL

Atrium Court, 50 Waterloo St, Glasgow, G2 6HQ.

- Scotiiai

Fravc sy Risvivay

Abellio ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scotland Number SC450732. Registered office: bth Floor, Culzean Building
36 Renfield Street Glasgow G2 1LU

This message is intended solely for the addressee and may contain confidential information. If you have received this message in error, p




it back to us, and immediately and permanently delefe it. Do not use, copy or disciose the informatfion contained in this message or in any
attachment.

Sent: a :

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

Transport Scotiand
Buchanan House

58 Port Dundas Road
Glasgow

G4 OHF

For agency and travel information visit our website

Transport Scofland, the national transport agency
Comhdhait Alba, buidheann naiseantfa na comhdhail

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

Abellio ScotRail Limited. Registered in Scotiand Number SC450732, Registered office: 5th Floor, Culzean Building
36 Renfield Strest Glasgow G2 1LU

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

Dear [

Further to your email of 28» February, with respect to the snow events of that week.

On 5 March, -ScotRaiI) advised hat they were pulling together the
details of the daily service alterations/implications, and the proposed treatments, as follows:

5




is pulling together details of the daily service alterations/implications and proposed
{reatment for me this week. I'd propose that we review that once available and agree overall
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
permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please destroy the email, remave any copies from your system and
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

Tha am post-d sec {agus faidhle neo ceanglan comhla ris) dhan neach neo luchd-ainmichte a-mhain. Chaneit e
ceadaichte a chleachdadh ann an doigh sam bith, a’ toirt a-steach céraichean, foillseachadh neo sgaoileadh, gun
chead. Ma ’s e is gun d’fhuair sibh seo gun thiosd’, bu choir cur as dhan phost-d agus lethbhreac sam bith air an t-
siostam agaibh agus fios a leigeil chun neach a sgaoil am post-d gun dail.

Dh’fhaodadh gum bi teachdaireachd sam bith bho Riaghaltas na h-Alba air a chlaradh neo air a sgrudadh airsan
dearbhadh gu bheil an siostam ag obair gu h-éifeachdach neo airson adhbhar laghail eile. Dh'fthaodadh nach eil

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
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P12 Original

Trains Booked
Cancellations
Canc%

PPM Passes
PPM %

Seats Planned
Seats Actual

P12 Updated

Trains Booked
Cancellations
Canc %

PPM Passes
PPM %

Seats Planned
Seats Actual

P12 Updated

Trains Booked
Cancellations
Canc %

PPM Passes
PPM %

Seats Planned
Seats Actual

Express Sector
Other
3384
178
5.3%
2759
81.5%
604889
597220

Express Sector
Other
3203
100
3.1%
2696
84.2%
583207
578161

Express Sector
Other
181
78
2.1%
63
-2.6%
21,682
19,059

Express Sector
E&G
3008
195
6.5%
2419
80.4%
665627
645806

Express Sector
E&G
2859
122
4.3%
2375
83.1%
636434
623954

Express Sector
E&G
149
73
2.2%
44
-2.7%
29,193
21,852

Rural Sector

3350
146
4.4%
2944

87.9%

384319

383822

Rural Sector
3134
84

2.7%
2824
90.1%

369874

369483

Rural Sector
216
62
1.7%
120
-2.2%
14,445
14,339

Suburban East
Sector
6550
291
4.4%
5844
89.2%
1069798
1058694

Suburban East
Sector
6334
159
2.5%
5791
91.4%
1022734
1016196

Suburban East
Sector
216
132
1.9%
53
-2.2%
47,064
42,498

Suburban West
Peak
7381
649
8.8%
5789
78.4%
7165815
7113961

Suburban West
Peak
6989
346
5.0%
5777
82.7%
6857318
6841709

Suburban West
Peak
392
303
3.8%
12
-4.2%
308,497
272,252




Suburban West

Off Peak Total
30066 53739
1704 3163
57% 5.9%
26790 46545
89.1% 86.6%
9890448
97958503
Suburban West
Off Peak Total
28961 51480
777 1588
2.7% 3.1%
26723 46186
92.3% 89.7%

9469567
9429503

Suburban West

Off Peak Total
1,105 2,259
927 1,575
3.0% 2.8%
67 359
-3.2% -3.1%

420,881
370,000



h B
From: _

Sent: 15 June 2018 17:31
To:
Subject: Notification of force majeure events: 28th February & 1st March 2018

pear

Thank you for supplying the revised data with respect to PPM, cancellations, and capacity
provided, in the context of the 28" February event.

We concur with your revised PPM calculations, as follows:
* The effect of the change in the period 12 data, lifts PPM for period 12 from 86.61 perceni to

89.72 percent (+3.10 percent)
* The MAA for PPM increases as follows:

Was s now:
Period 12 89.65% 89.87% +0.22%
Period 13 89.47% 89.69% +0.22%
Period 01 89.34% 89.65% +0.22%

Please ensure that the revised data on PPM, and seat capacity provided, is now supplied for the
next Franchise Performance report, in the tables which are used to provide the Schedule 7 data.

We would also be grateful if we could have a prompt confirmation of the period 2 PPM and MAA-
PPM, prior to provision of the full period 2 franchise report.

leo confirms that we have accepted your claim for force majeure, in line wit_

etter to you of 10t May.

Sincerely,




e

PPM Stat Time End Time

Journey Date Raw  Hcode Origin Dest
" INVERNESS DUNDEE

02/03/20618 011814M4 @ 04:53 08:19
02/03/2018 081Y20M5 0 05:21 06:31
02/03/2018 031H25M5 0°  05:39 09:36
02/03/2018 021BO7TM5 0 05:46 06:57
02/03/2018 012H8OMS O 06:11 09:10
02/03/2018 012H54M6 0 06:14 07:43
02/03/2018 012H58M8 O 06:26 08:12
02/03/2018 011B08ME6 O 06:50 08:49
02/03/2018 031A41M5 O 08:13
02/03/2018 011A46MA O 09:33
 02/03/2018 ©~  092N{ZMB 40 08:20
02/03/2018. 022A51MB O 08:41
02/03/2018 031A45MB 0 10:20
02/03/2018 - 081A58MD O 10:44
02/03/2018 011A48ME O 11:25
02/03/2018 021B18ME 0 11:35
02/03/2018 011B52MF ' 0 11:56
02/03/2018 031HO7MD O 11:58
02/03/2018 041L59MG O 11:21
02/03/2018 061R38MG 0 10:51
02/03/2018 072KETMG 0 11:05
02/03/2018 082K72MG 0 11:06
02/03/2018 061Y44MG O 13:27
02/03/2018 041R39MG 0 11:07
02/03/2018  081Y41MG . 0 13:34
02/03/2018 ©  061R42MH 0 11:21
02/03/2018. . 031A55MF 0 11:46
02/03/2018 021B24MH 0 13:28
02/03/2018 041R43MH 0O 11:37
02/03/2018 061R46MI O 11:51
02/03/2018 072K71ME 0 12:05
02/03/2018 082K76MI° 0 12:07
02/03/2018 041R4A7TMI O 12:06
02/03/2018 031L62MI O 12:53
02/03/2018 061R50MJ 0 12:19
02/03/2018 041A71MJS O 13:51
02/03/2018 021B28MJ O 14:33
02/03/2018 072K73MJ O 12:35
02/03/2018 082K78MJ O 12:35
02/03/2018 041R51MJ O 12:36
02/03/2018 031H11MH 0 14:15
02/03/2018 021H31MK O 14:11
02/03/2018 061R54MK O 12:50
02/03/2018 041L51MK O 13:24
02/03/2018 082K8OMK © 13:05
02/03/2018 071E76MK O 12:50
02/03/2018 041R55MK O 13:07
02/03/2018 061R58ML O 13:21
02/03/2018 072K77ML O 13:34
02/03/2018 031L52ML O 14:04
02/03/2018 081C58ML O 13:39
02/03/2018 041R59ML O 13:37
02/03/2018 011A52ML. O 14:55
02/03/2018 011B31ML O 15:03
02/03/2018 081L54MI O 13:35
02/03/2018 061R62MM 0O 13:53
02/03/2018 081A68MM O 14:54
02/03/2018 072K79MM 0 14:05

OBAN
DUNDEE
ABERDEEN
KYLEOFLOC
ARDGAY
LAIRG
INVERNESS
DUNDEE

- INVERNESS

DUMFRIES ~
HUNTLY
DUNDEE

STRANRAER

INVERNESS

ABERDEEN

INVERNESS

PERTH
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
GLASGOW C
© AYR
MALLAIG
EDINBURGH
CRNLARICH
GLWQUEENS
DUNDEE
INVERURIE
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
GLASGOW C
AYR
EDINBURGH
DUNDEE
GLWQUEENS
EDINBURGH
INVERURIE
GLASGOW G
AYR
EDINBURGH
PERTH
ABERDEEN
GLWQUEENS
EDINBURGH
AYR
GLASGOW C
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
GLASGOW C
DUNDEE
AYR

EDINBURGH

INVERNESS

INVERNESS

KILMARNCK

GLWQUEENS

KILMARNCK

GLASGOW C

CRNLARICH
INVERNESS
DUNDEE
INVERNESS
INVERNESS
INVERNESS
PERTH
ABERDEEN

ABERDEEN
' CARLISLE
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




02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
02/03/2018
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082K84MM
021B32MM
071L55MM
041R63MM
041AB5MN
061RE6MN
071K81MJ
082K86MN
041R67MN
041L55MO
061R70MO
021B35MO
072K83MO
082K88MO
071A10MO
041R71MO
061R74MP
031L.56MP
072K85MP
041R75MP
011T9oMP
081R78MQ
041L57MQ
072K87MQ
082K92MQ
041R79MQ
021B40MQ
021H35MQ
061R82MR
041A78MR
031L58MR
082K94MR
041R83MR
011B54MR
022A62MR
041L59MS
061R86MS
082K96MS
072K91MS
041R87MS
031H15MQ
022AB4MS
041A7SMT
061ROOMT
021B43MT
041R91MT
032L60MT
022A54MT
061R94MU
041L11MU
072K95MU
082K02MU
011A58MU
041R95MU
081A762U
071K47MU
061RO2MV
031L62MV
041A81MV
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13:06
13:08
13:13
1315
13:30
13:30
13:34
13:36
13:45
1400
14:00
14:04
14:04
14.06
14:13
14:15
14:30
14734
14:34
14:45
14:47
15:00
16:01
16:04
15:06
15:15
15:24
15:27
15:30
15:31
15:33
16:37
15:45
15:51
15:52
16:00
16:00
16:00
16:04
16:15
16:16
16:19
16:30
16:30
16:39
16:45
16:51
16:52
17:00
17:02
17:05
17.06
17:14
17:15
17:23
17:28
17:30
17:34
17:36

14:05
15:30
13:50
14.07
15:49
14:22
14:34
14:35
14:36
15:21
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16:28
15:05
15:.07
14:50
156:08
15:20
15:58
15:35
15:37
16:53
15:51
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16:05
16:08
16:07
18:34
17:49
16:18
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16:37
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18:04
16:14
17:21
16:48
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
DYCE
EDINBURGH
DUNDEE
ABERDEEN
GLWQUEENS
EDINBURGH
GLASGOW C
AYR
INVERNESS
EDINBURGH
AYR
GLASGOW C
GLWQUEENS
DUNDEE
EDINBURGH

GLASGOW C
EDINBURGH
KILMARNCK
GLWQUEENS
ABERDEEN
EDINBURGH
AYR
GLASGOW C
GLWQUEENS
. DUNDEE
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
IRVINE
GLWQUEENS
[INVERNESS
DYCE
INVERURIE
EDINBURGH
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
EDINBURGH
INVERURIE
EDINBURGH
DUNDEE
AYR
GLASGOW G
ABERDEEN
GLWQUEENS
STRANRAER
AYR
EDINBURGH
EDINBURGH
ABERDEEN
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041RO3MV
041L51MW
061ROBMW
072K9aMW
082K04MW
011AB0MW
041RO7MW
061R10MX
021B47MX
041R11MX
041L53MY
061R14MY
041R15MY
031A83MV
012H74MY
041A88MY
021B51MY
072W12MY
041R21MZ
042L79MZ
061R22MZ
041R25MZ
061R26MZ
032082MZ
022A56MZ
041R29M7
061R30M7
031H19MY
022A59M7
041R33M7
061R34M7
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071K67M8
081K70M8
‘081A87M8
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17:45
18:00
18:00
18:04
18:06
18:13
18:15
18:30
18:45
18:45
19:00
19:00
19:15
19:18
19:28
19:34
19:46
19:47
20:00
20:00
20:00
20:30
20:30
20:42
20:57
21:00
21:00
21.01
21.24
21:30
21:30
22:00
2200
22:00
22:15
22:30

18:37
19:27
18:53
19:05
19:05
20:35
19:09
19:18
21:34
19:36
20:22
19:47
20:08
20:35
20:57
00:13
22:53
20:43
20:49
21:32
20:52
21:25
21:23
22:15
2119
21:52
21:47
23:16
2148
22:21
22:24
22:44
22:50
22:53
23.06
23:09

EDINBURGH
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
GLASGOW C
AYR
INVERNESS
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
INVERURIE
EDINBURGH
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
EDINBURGH
DUNDEE
ARDGAY
EDINBURGH
INVERURIE
WEMYSSBAY
EDINBURGH
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
DUNDEE
ABERDEEN
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
PERTH
INVERURIE
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
EDINBURGH
GLWQUEENS
GLASGOW C
AYR
GIRVAN

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






